
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 121222.docx 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 


Notice is hereby given that Plan Commission of the City of 


Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a regular or special meeting as 


indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


Meeting of: PLAN COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date//Time: Monday, December 12, 2022 @ 6:00 p.m. 


 


Location: The meeting of the Plan Commission will be conducted as a hybrid meeting.  


(Virtual and In-Person) 


 
In-Person:  Council Chambers (2nd floor of the Public Safety Building) 


   321 S. Fourth Street, Stoughton, WI 


 


Virtual:  You can join the meeting using a computer, tablet or smartphone via Zoom 


https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84137605615?pwd=dmhLcEkydzJiM3lkRVEraVBkc0VLdz09 


 


Phone in:  +1 312 626 6799      Meeting ID: 841 3760 5615 Passcode:  688189 


 
If you wish to call in and speak at the meeting, please register at: 
http://speak.cityofstoughton.com by 5:45 on or before the day of the meeting. Any 
written comments will be forwarded on to the “Organizer” and Commissioners. 
 


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning 


Administrator at 608-646-0421.   
 


 


 


AGENDA 


1. Call to Order 


2. Consider approval of the Plan Commission meeting minutes of November 14, 2022.   


3. Council Representative Report. 


4. Staff Report - Status of Current Developments. 


5. Awning and signage improvements at 139 E. Main Street. 


6. Extra-territorial land division (CSM) at 1781 Oakview Drive and 2745 Yahara Road, 


Town of Pleasant Springs. 


 Recommendation to Council 


7. Extra-territorial land division (CSM) at 1343 Starr School Road, Town of Rutland. 


 Recommendation to Council 


8. Future agenda items. 


9. Adjournment. 
 


 



https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84137605615?pwd=dmhLcEkydzJiM3lkRVEraVBkc0VLdz09

http://speak.cityofstoughton.com/





S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Commission Notices\PC Agendas 2022\Plan Com Notice 121222.docx 


 


COMMISSIONERS:  


Mayor Tim Swadley, Chair   Tom Robinson   Dorann Bradford 


Brett Schumacher, Vice-Chair  Tom Majewski  Phil Caravello 


Al Farrow 


 


E-MAIL NOTICES: 


Leadership Team     Council members  Steve Kittelson 


City Attorney Matt Dregne   Stoughton Hub  Area Townships  


Peter Sveum     Michael Stacey  Chamber of Commerce 


smonette@stolib.org    Spencer Meier   wstotv981@gmail.com  


tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com  Sue Strandlie   Jessica Gross 


Tracy Bellefeuille    Michael Rumpf 


   


            


 


Any person wishing to attend the meeting, whom because of a disability, requires special 


accommodation, should contact the City Clerk’s Office at (608) 873-6692 at least 24 


hours before the scheduled meeting time so appropriate arrangements can be made. In 


addition, any person wishing to speak or have their comments heard but does not have 


access to the internet should also contact the City Clerk’s Office at the number above at 


least 24 hours before the scheduled meeting so appropriate arrangements can be made.  


 



mailto:smonette@stolib.org

mailto:wstotv981@gmail.com

mailto:tjones@wisconsinmediagroup.com






T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  111422.docx 


Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


Monday, November 14, 2022 at 6:00 pm 


Hybrid Meeting 


 


Members Present:  Mayor Swadley, Chair; Brett Schumacher; Phil Caravello; Tom Robinson; 


Al Farrow; Dorann Bradford and Tom Majewski 


Members Absent: None 


Staff:  Rodney Scheel, Planning and Development Director 


Guests: Jeff Kraemer; Ron Klaas; Michael Maas; Robert Hostrawser; Steve Tremlett; Adam 


Ryan; Patricia Micetic; David West; Lara Romine; Jordan Tilleson; Karen Drogsvold; Sherry 


Leick; Denise & Matthew Kuehl; Chuck Elliott; Scott Klongland 


 


1. Call to Order.  Mayor Swadley called the meeting to order at 6:00 pm. 


 


2. Plan Commission meeting minutes of October 10, 2022.   


Motion by Schumacher to approve the minutes as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion 


carried unanimously.  


 


3. Council Representative Report. 


Caravello stated the Common Council approved O-18-2022, O-24-2022, O-25-2022 and R-


202-2022. 


 


4. Status of Current Developments.   
Scheel gave an overview of the status of developments as outlined in the packet of materials.   


 


5. Preliminary plat for Magnolia Springs. 


Scheel highlighted aspects of the Preliminary Plat and associated resolution for the benefit of 


the Commission and public. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak and no one came forward to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the Preliminary Plat as 


presented, 2nd by Bradford.   


 


Majewski questioned whether the water areas in the parkland area was included in the 


“parkland” dedication total.  He also questioned the grades within the dedicated parkland 


area.  The water areas are not included in the parkland calculation and the Parks & 


Recreation Committee worked with the developer to prescribe an area for playground 


equipment and trails. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


11/14/22 


Page 2 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  111422.docx 


 


Majewski raised concern that the stormwater management basin proposed in Outlot 2 is not 


curvilinear in appearance.  He indicated the basin should be organic in nature.  There was 


discussion about this item.   


 


Motion by Caravello, seconded by Majewski to amend the original motion to change Recital 


Item D in the proposed resolution to indicate “...the configurations of stormwater 


management ponds within the Plat are not acceptable…”  Motion carried 5-2 with Swadley 


and Bradford voting no. 


 


Motion by Caravello, seconded by Majewski to amend the original motion to add #17 to the 


resolution stating: “Before the City will sign a Final Plat, the proposed stormwater 


management basin for Outlot 2 is to be modified to comply with the aesthetic, curvilinear, 


expectations of City Ord. 66-904(8) to the satisfaction of the City.”  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


Original motion as amended twice carried unanimously. 


 


6. Conditional use for an indoor commercial entertainment use (arcade and video gaming 


including alcohol consumption) at 384 E. Main Street.    


Scheel explained the request.   


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Caravello to recommend the Common Council approve the Conditional Use 


Permit as presented, 2nd by Majewski.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


7. Electronic Message Board Signage at 384 E. Main Street. 


Scheel explained the request.  There was discussion about the need for the project to be 


compatible and harmonious with existing buildings.  The electronic message board sign 


seems out of character for the front of a building in the Downtown Overlay District. 


 


Motion by Caravello to approve the electronic message board as presented, 2nd by 


Schumacher.   


 


Motion failed 7-0. 


 


8. Certified Survey Map to split the property at 1540 Williams Drive. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


 Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the certified survey 


map as presented, 2nd by Caravello.  Motion carried unanimously. 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


11/14/22 


Page 3 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  111422.docx 


 


9. Conditional use for a daycare use (Ginger Bread Preschool and Child Care) at 1540 


Williams Drive. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use 


resolution as presented, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


10. Site plan for development of the property at 1540 Williams Drive. 


Scheel explained the request. 


 


The architect, Michael Maas, provided a summary of the project. 


 


Motion by Bradford to approve the site plan resolution adding the staff letter to ADCI dated 


October 27, 2022 as additional contingency, 2nd by Schumacher.  Motion carried 


unanimously. 


 


11. Conditional use for indoor commercial entertainment and in-vehicle sales uses 


(restaurants) at 1424 US Highway 51 (former Pizza Hut site). 


Scheel explained the request.  Jeff Kraemer indicated that Noodles and Co. will be the 


eastern tenant, T-Mobile is planned for the center unit and Cousins Subs is the western 


tenant.  He indicated Noodles and Co. pickup window will require preorder and prepayment 


so no ordering will occur in their pickup window.  Scheel explained the interest by the 


applicant to not require one-way onsite circulation.  Scheel proposed the following language 


be added to the Conditional Use Permit resolution: subject to the following: 


 No vehicles can stack into USH 51-138 


 An approved site plan by the Plan Commission 


 


Mayor Swadley opened the public hearing. 


 


No one registered to speak. 


 


Mayor Swadley closed the public hearing. 


 


Motion by Bradford to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use 


resolution as presented with the additional language proposed by Scheel, 2nd by Majewski.   


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


11/14/22 


Page 4 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  111422.docx 


 


12. Site plan for redevelopment of the property at 1424 US Highway 51. 


Scheel explained the request.  A few minor items identified in the staff letter such as 


landscaping for the bufferyard are being worked out. 


 


The staff review letter recommends a one-way on-site traffic pattern. The owner doesn’t 


believe the one-way traffic pattern is necessary.  Therefore, Scheel recommends the following 


language be added to the site plan resolution: Staff review letter, “but allows for two-way 


traffic on the south side of the site unless vehicle stacking becomes an issue as identified by 


the City Zoning Administrator and at that time signage will be required to be installed by the 


property owner to installed one-way traffic signage and Do Not Enter signage.” 


 


Motion by Bradford to approve the site plan resolution with the additional recommended 


language, 2nd by Schumacher. 


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


13. Façade and signage improvements at 176 E. Main Street. 


Scheel explained the request.   


 


Motion by Robinson to approve the façade improvements as presented, 2nd by Caravello. 


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


14. Specific Implementation Plan for Lot 6 in the 51 West Development. 


Scheel explained the request.  Chuck Elliott provided additional background on the project. 


 


Motion by Schumacher to approve the site plan as presented, 2nd by Bradford. 


 


Motion carried unanimously. 


 


15. Public Sidewalk and Driveway location at 1000 Riverview Drive. 


Scheel explained the agenda item.  Patricia Micetic explained the concept to have a driveway 


from Roby Road.  Scheel expressed safety concerns about having a driveway open on Roby 


on this steep section of street near the intersection with Lincoln.  Scheel provided rationale to 


not require sidewalks on any of the frontages (Lincoln, Roby or Riverview) until a major 


City street project takes place.  Scheel presented a revised resolution that requires the 


driveway for this property to access Riverview Drive (not Lincoln Avenue or Roby Road) 


and that public sidewalks not be installed until part of a larger City project on any of the 


street frontages due to design, grade, and accessibility and safety considerations. 


 


Motion by Caravello to approve the revised resolution presented by Scheel, 2nd by 


Schumacher. 


 


Motion carried unanimously 


 







Plan Commission Meeting Minutes 


11/14/22 


Page 5 of 5 


 


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Plan Commission\2022\Plan Com Minutes  111422.docx 


 


16. Future agenda items. 


 


Stone Crest Area Urban Service Area Amendment 


Magnolia Springs Plat 


 


17. Adjournment. 


Motion by Majewski to adjourn at 8:00 pm, 2nd by Bradford.  Motion carried unanimously. 


 


 


Respectfully Submitted,  


Rodney J. Scheel 








S:\Planning\MPS\Planning Commission Notices-Memos\Staff Reviews\Staff Reviews 2022\Status of development 121222.doc 


CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.cityofstoughton.com/planning 


 


 


 


Date:  November 28, 2022 


 


To:  Plan Commission Members 


   


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


  Michael Stacey 


  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 


 


Subject: Status of Current Developments  


 


Status of Development: 


 Sinobec Resources – Stormwater as-built plan and lighting shrouds expected soon. 


 Stoughton Utilities Substation on McComb Road – Paving left to do. 


 Grosso Commercial Buildings – 441 Glacier Moraine Drive – Buildings under construction. 


 Riverfront Development – SIP approved.  Expecting a spring of 2023 start. 


 Dollar Tree – Landscaping, lighting, and bike rack still pending. 


 Pizza Hut - 1400 US Hwy 51 – Landscaping still pending. 


 314 W. Main Street - Buildings under construction.  


 Walmart landscaping is mostly finished, just waiting on 6 trees. 


 Emmi-Roth – Building under construction. 


 1680 Nygaard Street (Lot 18, 51 West) (81 unit apt) building is under construction. 


 Magnolia Springs final plat and rezoning likely in January 2023. 


 Popeye’s Chicken has State approval but has not acquired building permits yet. 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2022 
October 2022 


 
COMMERCIAL 


Building Activity 
Type # of Permits 


October 2022 
October 2022 $ 
Fees Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 


Values 
Addition 1 $730 3 $1,550 $76,000 
New 
Construction - 
Building 2 $9,226 18 $86,902 $44,535,202 
New 
Construction - 
Other 0 $0 0 $0 $0 
Remodel/Repair 7 $915 96 $20,744 $3,694,386 
Zoning 2 $680 72 $46,917 $277,398 
Grand Total 


12 $11,551 189 $156,113 $48,582,986 
 


 
RESIDENTIAL 


Building Activity 
Type # of Permits 


October 2022 
October 2022 $ 
Fees Collected 


YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 


Values 
Addition 5 $935 35 $6,692 $893,891 
New 
Construction -  
Dwelling 8 $11,328 56 $78,879 $14,529,288 
New 
Construction - 
Other  0 $0 0 $0 $0 
Remodel/Repair 49 $3,645 465 $36,455 $5,554,965 
Zoning 12 $2,135 141 $50,210 $520,422 
Grand Total 74 $18,043 697 $172,236 $21,498,566 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 


 City of Stoughton 
 


For more information, please contact: Michael Stacey – Zoning Administrator 
(608) 646-0421 or mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 







City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2022 


 


 
 


 City of Stoughton  S:\Planning\Desi\Monthly Permit Report\September 2022 - mps.docx                                                            


0


2


1


0


0


0


14


61


11


6


1


5


2


8


0


0


7


49


2


12


0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwelling


Commercial New Construction- Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits Issued


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Monthly Permit Data


October-22


October-21


2


36


8


21


0


0


105


1137


66


180


3


35


18


56


0


0


96


465


72


141


0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwellings


Commercial New Construction - Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits 


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Yearly Permits Issued to Date


YEAR 2022


YEAR 2021







City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2022 
November 2022 


 
COMMERCIAL 


Building Activity 
Type # of Permits 


November 2022 
November 2022 $ 


Fees Collected 
YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 


Values 
Addition 1 $730 4 $2,058 $128,000 
New 
Construction - 
Building 1 $10,709 19 $97,610 $45,230,202 
New 
Construction - 
Other 0 $0 0 $0 $0 
Remodel/Repair 9 $1,870 105 $22,614 $3,870,821 
Zoning 7 $1,554 79 $48,471 $282,998 
Grand Total 


18 $14,863 207 $170,753 $49,512,021 
 


 
RESIDENTIAL 


Building Activity 
Type # of Permits 


November 2022 
November 2022 $ 


Fees Collected 
YTD # of 
Permits 


YTD $ Fees 
Collected 


YTD 
Construction 


Values 
Addition 2 $365 37 $7,057 $961,341 
New 
Construction -  
Dwelling 0 $0 56 $78,879 $14,529,288 
New 
Construction - 
Other  0 $0 0 $0 $0 
Remodel/Repair 42 $3,170 507 $39,625 $6,022,225 
Zoning 9 $5,720 150 $55,930 $537,622 
Grand Total 53 $9,255 750 $181,491 $22,050,476 


 
 
 
 
 
 


 
 


 


 City of Stoughton 
 


For more information, please contact: Michael Stacey – Zoning Administrator 
(608) 646-0421 or mstacey@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 







City of Stoughton - Building & Zoning Activity 2022 


  


  
 


 City of Stoughton  S:\Planning\Desi\Monthly Permit Report\Nov 2022 - mps.docx                                                            


0


2


0


0


0


0


8


41


4


12


1


2


1


0


0


0


9


42


7


9


0 5 10 15 20 25 30 35 40 45


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwelling


Commercial New Construction- Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits Issued


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Monthly Permit Data


November-22


November-21


2


38


8


21


0


0


113


1178


70


192


4


37


19


56


0


0


105


507


79


150


0 200 400 600 800 1000 1200 1400


Commercial Addition


Residential Addition


Commercial New Construction-Buildings


Residential New Construction-Dwellings


Commercial New Construction - Other


Residential New Construction - Other


Commercial Remodel/Repair


Residential Remodel/Repair


Commercial Zoning


Residential Zoning


Number of Permits 


Bu
ild


in
g 


Ac
tiv


ity
 T


yp
e


Yearly Permits Issued to Date


YEAR 2022


YEAR 2021












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\121222\PC Info\139 E. Main Sign Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  December 5, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the December 12, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting. 
 
Awning and signage review (Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District) at 139 E. 
Main Street. 
This property is within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, which requires approval for 
any exterior improvements including changes in color for awnings and signage.  The proposal is to 
install a front awning with signage.  The resolution, application information, and staff review are 
provided.  Plan Commission approval is necessary. 
 
 
   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 


Approving awning and signage improvements at 139 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI.  


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission approves the request  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
 


 
File Number: 


 
R - 24 - 2022 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
December 12, 2022 


RECITALS 
 


A. Tracy Bellefeuille (the “Applicant”) is seeking approval for façade improvements including a 
new awning and signage at 139 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the 
“Property”). 
 


B. The Property is zoned Central Business and is within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning 
District which requires approval for any exterior changes.   
 


C. The City Plan Commission reviewed and discussed the proposed façade improvements at their 
regular December 12, 2022 meeting and found that the improvements meet the intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan and zoning ordinance requirements. 


 
  RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Stoughton Plan Commission approves façade improvements at 139 E. 
Main Street, Stoughton, WI, as presented. 


 
   
                                             
Tim Swadley    Date 
Chair 
 


 
    
   
    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\PC Resolutions 2022\139 E. Main Street Awning 24-22.doc 















NEW AWNING 
AND SIGNAGE







Google 


Norwegian 
age Center 


Image capture: Sep 2022 @ 2022 Google 


OLD  AWNING AND SIGNAGE







CITY OF STOUGHTON     RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT  DIRECTOR 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589   (608) 873-6619 
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning    fax: (608) 873-5519 


       
 
 
 


November 22, 2022 
 
Tracy Bellefeuille 
139 E. Main Street 
Stoughton, WI. 53589 
 
 
Dear Ms. Bellefeuille: 
 
I have completed a review of the front awning and signage improvements at 139 E. Main Street.  
Renovation review according to the downtown design overlay zoning district requirements is 
outlined below.  This request is planned for review/approval at the December 12, 2022 Plan 
Commission meeting of which you will receive notice.  You and/or your representative are 
required to attend the meeting to present your project and answer questions.   
 
1. The property at 139 E. Main Street is zoned CB – Central Business and is within the 


Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District (DDOZD).  The building is not listed as a 
Local Landmark and is not subject to Landmarks Commission review.  The building is 
contributing to the Main Street Historic District.  The project has been determined to 
fall under Renovation, which is subject to review and approval, by the City Plan 
Commission.  The proposed project consists of front awning and signage replacement.     
 


2. Section 78-517 (1)and (3)(b) states: 
(1) Purpose. This district is intended to preserve and enhance the aesthetic qualities of the 
downtown, and retain a consistent and visually pleasing image for the downtown area.  
(3)(b)Renovation means work involving a change in the appearance of a building or structure 
(such as architectural component or signage substitution or painting, roofing, siding, with 
different colors, finishes, or materials). 
 


3. Section 78-517(5)(b) Procedural requirements and standards for approval, states:  
(b)  Renovation. Renovation shall be subject to approval by the plan commission. The plan 
commission shall approve an application for renovation if the proposed renovation will 
conform to the standards set forth in section 78-517(7). Applications for approval of 
renovation shall be made to the zoning administrator, and shall be accompanied by all of the 
following:  
1.  The building permit application if such an application is required.  An application and 


fee of $80 will be required for signage. 



http://www.cityofstoughton.com/planning





2.  A clear depiction of the existing appearance of the property including clear color 
photographs. Scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of existing components such as windows, 
doors, railings, fencing or other site components, and/or detailed building elevations which 
are proposed for alteration or replacement are recommended and may be required by the city.  
Staff acquired. 
3.  A clear depiction of the proposed appearance of the property including paint charts, 
promotional brochures, and/or clear color photographs of replacement architectural 
components. Scaled or fully dimensioned drawings of proposed components such as 
windows, doors, railings, fencing or other site components, and/or detailed building 
elevations which are proposed for alteration or replacement are recommended and may be 
required by the city.  Façade rendering provided. 
4.  A clear written description of the proposed modification, including a complete listing of 
proposed components, materials, and colors.  Provided. 
5.  A clear written explanation regarding how the proposed alteration will conform to 
section 78-517(7) with direct reference to each applicable design standard.  Description 
provided. 


 
4. Section 78-517(7) states the following related to this request: 


 
(j)  Exterior surfaces. Appurtenances (accessories): Exterior surface appurtenances shall be 
compatible with those of existing buildings in the immediate area. In addition:  


1.  Traditional storefront design (characterized by strong horizontal and vertical 
rhythms formed by building openings, storefront columns, storefront cornices, upper 
cornices, kickplates, signbands, large display windows, and transom windows) shall be 
employed for all buildings.  
2.  Throughout the district, cluttering street-facing facades with unnecessary signs, 


brackets, wiring, meter boxes, antennae, gutters, downspouts and other appurtenances is 
prohibited. Where necessary, such features shall be colored so as to blend in, rather than 
contrast, with the immediately adjacent building exterior. Extraneous ornamentation, 
which is inconsistent with buildings within the immediate area, is also prohibited.   


The previous awning was black in color and the new awning is pink.  To be reviewed by 
the Plan Commission. 
(l)  Exterior colors. Colors shall relate in a positive way to the existing materials found on 
the facade (especially the masonry), and to existing elements, such as signs or awnings. 
Clean the exterior surfaces with the gentlest means possible, such as light washing with light 
pressure (sandblasting destroys the brick by prematurely weathering and eroding its surface). 
When the surface to be painted has a quantity of three-dimensional detail, use light or mid-
range color values, rather than extremely dark colors, so the details are not hidden. When in 
doubt on an appropriate palette, use shades of one color with one highlight color. When 
choosing colors, take into account the position of the building in relation to sunlight. Exterior 
colors for structures and appurtenances including fixtures and signs shall be compatible and 
harmonious with those of existing buildings in the immediate area. Specifically, throughout 
the district:  







1.  High gloss paints, lacquers, varnishes or other "shiny" non-glazing surfaces shall not 
be used.  
2.  Facade color combination schemes shall be limited to no more than three different 
colors for each structure on a property. (Varying shades, tints or intensities of a color 
shall count as a different color for this purpose.)  
3.  Facade color schemes shall be used consistently throughout the property, including 
on both the upper and lower portions of buildings, and on all facades of a building or 
structure. 


To be reviewed by the Plan Commission.   
(n)  Signage. Signs shall be placed at the top of the storefront; painted on the window itself; 
hanging over the sidewalk; or on the edge of an awning.  


1.  Coordinate the placement of signage with adjacent storefronts to avoid visual 
confusion. Large hanging plastic signs and oversized signs are prohibited.  
2.  Signage placed over features on the second story facade are prohibited.  
3.  Select clear, simple lettering styles for easy readability.  
4.  Consider the color of the building and of neighboring buildings when determining 
sign color.  
5.  Select sign colors that provide contrast between letters and background: a dark 
background with lighter colored letters is most easily perceived by the human eye.  
6.  Where possible, signs shall reflect an individual business message rather than 
advertise a nationally-franchised product.  
7.  There are additional signage requirements in article VIII.  


To be reviewed by the Plan Commission.   
 


 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421 


    Sincerely, 
    City of Stoughton 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 
 
    Michael P. Stacey 


Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
 
 
 
 


s:\planning\property log folder\139 e main street\ddozd appl 11.21.22\ddozd renovation review letter 11.22.22.doc 








\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\121222\PC Info\2745 Yahara Rd Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  December 5, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the December 12, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and January 10, 


2023 Common Council Meeting. 
 
Extra-territorial land division (CSM) at 1781 Oakview Drive and 2745 Yahara Road, 
Town of Pleasant Springs.   
The City has review authority for any land division requests within 1.5-miles of the City border.  
According to the City Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, this property is beyond the 
Planned Urban Development Area of the City of Stoughton.   We see no issues approving the land 
division contingent on Town and County approval.  The resolution and related materials are 
provided.  A recommendation to the Common Council is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving an extra-territorial, jurisdictional (ETJ) land division for properties located at 1781 
Oakview Drive and 2745 Yahara Road, Town of Pleasant Springs, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None  


File Number: 
 
R -  - 2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, this land division request is proposed to add land to 1781 Oakview Drive from 2745 Yahara 
Road, Town of Pleasant Springs; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 
determined by the Plan Commission and Common Council. This property is within the City’s 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is beyond the Planned Urban Development Area of the City of 
Stoughton; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 12, 2022 the Stoughton Plan Commission reviewed the land division request and 
recommends Common Council approval as presented; now therefore 
  
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land 
division request for property located at 1781 Oakview Drive and 2745 Yahara Road, Town of Pleasant 
Springs, is hereby approved as presented contingent on Town of Pleasant Springs and Dane County 
approval. 
 
 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                                     
Tim Swadley, Mayor       Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\1781 Oakview and 2745 Yahara ETJ Land Division.doc 































Sources: Esri, A irbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA,
Geodatastyrelsen, Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap and the GIS user community,
Parcels


1781 Oakview


Dane County Mask
Parcels


December 5, 2022 0 1,250 2,500625 Feet


¯


CTH  B


W
IL


LI
AM


S 
 D


R
.


X
X







x





		220611-GROSS_1781OAKVIEWcsmSUBMITTALsent110722.pdf

		S1-CSM

		S2-CSM

		S3-CSM

		S4-CSM

		S5-CSM












\\sto-fs1\global-public-files\PACKETS\PLAN COMMISSION\2022\121222\PC Info\1343 Starr School Rd Memo.doc 


 
 


CITY OF STOUGHTON  RODNEY J. SCHEEL 
DEPARTMENT OF    DIRECTOR 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
207 S. Forrest Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 
(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 
 
 


 
 
Date:  December 5, 2022 
 
To:  Plan Commissioners and Common Council    
   
From:  Rodney J. Scheel 
  Director of Planning & Development 
 
  Michael P. Stacey 
  Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner 
 
Subject: Agenda Item for the December 12, 2022 Plan Commission Meeting and January 10, 


2023 Common Council Meeting. 
 
Extra-territorial land division at 1343 Starr School Road, Town of Rutland.   
The City has review authority for any land division requests within 1.5-miles of the City border.  
According to the City Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map, this property is depicted as 
Planned Mixed Use and Planned Neighborhood.  Single Family Residential uses are proposed and 
are consistent with the Planned Mixed and Planned Neighborhood designations.   We see no issues 
approving the land division contingent on Town and County approval.  The resolution and related 
materials are provided.  A recommendation to the Common Council is necessary.   
 
 


 



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





CITY OF STOUGHTON, 207 S. FORREST STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN 
 


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 
 
Approving an extra-territorial, jurisdictional (ETJ) land division for property located at 1343 Starr 
School Road, Town of Rutland, Dane County, Wisconsin. 


 
Committee Action: 


 
Plan Commission recommends Council approval  - 0 


 
Fiscal Impact: 


 
None  


File Number: 
 
R -  - 2023 


 
Date Introduced: 


 
 


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows: 
 
WHEREAS, this land division is proposed to separate the homestead from the agricultural land and create 
an additional 2 residential lots at 1343 Starr School Road in the Town of Rutland; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Comprehensive Plan is used as a guide for the general pattern of development as 
determined by the Plan Commission and Common Council. This property is within the City’s 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) and is depicted as Planned Mixed Use and Planned Neighborhood on the 
Future Land Use Map; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the proposed single family residential uses are consistent with the Planned Mixed Use and 
Planned Neighborhood designations; and 
 
WHEREAS, on December 12, 2022 the Stoughton Plan Commission reviewed the land division request and 
recommends Common Council approval as presented; now therefore 
  
BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that the extra-territorial jurisdictional land 
division request for property located at 1343 Starr School Road, Town of Rutland, is hereby approved as 
presented contingent on Town of Rutland and Dane County approval. 
 
 
Council Action:         Adopted     Failed Vote       
  
 
Mayoral Action:        Accept     Veto  
 
                                                     
Tim Swadley, Mayor       Date 


 
Council Action:           Override  Vote       
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\1343 Starr School Road ETJ Land Division.doc 















306 West Quarry Street, Deerfield, Wisconsin  53531
surveying and mapping services*


C.S.M.  No.________V._______P.______
Document No._____________________
Sheet_________of_________
Dwg. No.____________Date__________


Scale 1" = 120'


240120600


(608) 764-5602


N89°49'14"W


285.00'


N
0


0 °
1


0'
4


6"
E


2
64


'


S
0


0 °
1


0'
4


6"
W


2
64


'


285.00'


N90°00'00"W 388.00'


N
0


0°
00


'0
0"


E


2
25


.0
0'


S90°00'00"E


264'


S
0


0 °
1


0'
4


6"
W


2
25


.0
0'


N
0


0°
1


0'
4


6"
E


2
15


.0
0'


1.7 ac


N90°00'00"W


264.00'


N
0


0 °
1


0'
4


6"
E


6
90


.3
1'


Lot 1


Lot  2


2.0 acre


Lot  3


2.0 acres


CSM #11096


S
0


0°
1


0'
4


6"
W


3
75


'


SE cor Sec. 2-5-10


1/4 - 1/4 line


SE 1/4  -
  S


E 1/4


NE 1/4  - 
 S


E 1/4


P
a


rts o
f th


e N
E


 14  of th
e S


E
 14  an


d the S
E


 14  of th
e S


E
 14 , all 


in S
e


ctio
n


 2
, T


ow
n


 5 N
orth, R


an
ge


 10 E
ast, T


o
w


n of 
R


u
tla


nd
, D


a
ne


 C
o


u
nty, W


isconsin


Prepared for the Dorothy M. Johnson estate


sh
ed


H
s e


103'


103'


2
15


'


Parts of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ and the SE ¼ of the SE ¼, all in 
Section 2, Town 5 North, Range 10 East, Town of Rutland, 
Dane County, Wisconsin, described as follows:


Commencing at the Southeast corner of Section 2; thence 
N00°10'46"E along the East line of the SE ¼, 690.31 feet to the 
point of beginning; thence N89°49'14"W, 285 feet; thence 
N00°10'46"E, 264 feet; thence West, 103 feet; thence North, 
225 feet; thence East, 103 feet; thence North, 215 feet; 
thence West, 200 feet; thence N0°10'46"E, 375 feet; 
thence S89°39'56"E, 464 feet; thence S00°10'46"W, 375 
feet; thence West, 264 feet; thence South, 215 feet; thence 
East, 264 feet to the East line of the SE ¼; thence 
S00°10'46"W, 489 feet to the point of beginning. 
Containing 7.7 acres, being subject to a right of way for Starr 
School Road across the Easterly 33 feet.


9/13/2022


4
89


'


rev legal 10/24/22


N
0


°1
0


'4
6


"E
  


3
7


5'


S89°39'56"E   464'


200'


1
87


. 5
'  


  
   


   
  


   
   


  
   


   
  


   
  1


87
.5


'


464'


1
87


.5
'  


  
  


  
   


   
  


  
   


   
  


   
 1


87
.5


'


Lot  4


2.0 acres


N
o


rt
h


rev 4 lots 11/7/22







Scale 1" = 120'


240120600


N89°49'14"W


285.00'


N
0


0 °
1


0'
4


6"
E


2
64


'


S
0


0 °
1


0'
4


6"
W


2
64


'
285.00'


N90°00'00"W 388.00'


N
0


0°
0


0'
0


0"
E


2
25


.0
0'


S90°00'00"E


264'


S
0


0 °
1


0'
4


6"
W


2
25


.0
0'


N
0


0°
1


0'
4


6"
E


2
15


.0
0'


1.7 ac


N90°00'00"W


264.00'


N
0


0 °
1


0'
4


6"
E


6
90


.3
1'


Lot 1


Lot  2


2.0 acre


Lot  3


2.0 acres


CSM #11096


S
0


0°
1


0'
4


6"
W


3
75


'


SE cor Sec. 2-5-10


1/4 - 1/4 line


SE 1/4  -
  S


E 1/4


NE 1/4  - 
 S


E 1/4


P
a


rts o
f th


e N
E


 14  of th
e S


E
 14  an


d the S
E


 14  of th
e S


E
 14 , all 


in S
e


ctio
n


 2
, T


ow
n


 5 N
orth, R


an
ge


 10 E
ast, T


o
w


n of 
R


u
tla


nd
, D


a
ne


 C
o


u
nty, W


isconsin


Prepared for the Dorothy M. Johnson estate


sh
ed


H
se


103'


103'


2
15


'


Parts of the NE ¼ of the SE ¼ and the SE ¼ of the SE ¼, all in 
Section 2, Town 5 North, Range 10 East, Town of Rutland, 
Dane County, Wisconsin, described as follows:


Commencing at the Southeast corner of Section 2; thence 
N00°10'46"E along the East line of the SE ¼, 690.31 feet to the 
point of beginning; thence N89°49'14"W, 285 feet; thence 
N00°10'46"E, 264 feet; thence West, 103 feet; thence North, 
225 feet; thence East, 103 feet; thence North, 215 feet; 
thence West, 200 feet; thence N0°10'46"E, 375 feet; 
thence S89°39'56"E, 464 feet; thence S00°10'46"W, 375 
feet; thence West, 264 feet; thence South, 215 feet; thence 
East, 264 feet to the East line of the SE ¼; thence 
S00°10'46"W, 489 feet to the point of beginning. 
Containing 7.7 acres, being subject to a right of way for Starr 
School Road across the Easterly 33 feet.


4
89


'


N
0


°1
0


'4
6


"E
  


3
7


5'


S89°39'56"E   464'


200'
1


87
. 5


'  
  


   
   


  
   


   
  


   
   


  
   


  1
87


.5
'


464'


1
87


.5
'  


  
  


  
   


   
  


   
   


   
  


   
18


7.
5'


Lot  4


2.0 acres


N
o


rt
h







































Sources: Esri, A irbus DS, USGS, NGA, NASA, CGIAR, N Robinson, NCEAS, NLS, OS, NMA,
Geodatastyrelsen, Rijkswaterstaat, GSA, Geoland, FEMA, Intermap and the GIS user community,
Parcels


1343 Starr School Road


Dane County Mask
Parcels


December 5, 2022 0 750 1,500375 Feet


¯


STATE  HWY 138


ST
AR


R
 S


C
H


O
O


L 
R


O
AD


X


X


WALMART







¬«138


x


x









